
  EExxeeccuuttiivvee  CCoommmmiitttteeee  
DDaavviidd  ZZiimmmmeerrmmaann  --  CChhaaiirrmmaann  

JJuurryy  CCoommmmiissssiioonn  RRoooomm  ––  MMccKKeennzziiee  BBuuiillddiinngg  
                                                                          WWeeddnneessddaayy,,  JJuullyy  2244,,  22002244  
                                                        **iimmmmeeddiiaatteellyy  ffoolllloowwiinngg  RRiisskk  MMaannaaggeemmeenntt**  

  
I. Roll Call 

 
  II.  Approve minutes of the June 19, 2024 meeting and June 26, 2024 in-place  
    meeting   
 
  III.   Public Comment   
  
 IV.   New Business  
 
E-24-59  A. Recommend to approve Election Judge List 
 
E-24-75  B. Recommend to approve appointment to County Board for District 2 
 
E-24-85  C. Recommend to approve National Opioid Settlement Agreement with Kroger 
 
E-24-87  D. Recommend to approve 3rd quarter 2024 payment to Greater Peoria 
   Economic Development Council 
 
E-24-88  E. Recommend to approve Resolution Authorizing Conveyance of County  
   Owned Right of Way 
 
E-24-89  F. Recommend to approve proposed change to FY23 Energy Transition Grant  
   Fund projects 
 
E-24-90  G. Recommend to approve Intergovernmental Agreement to Provide Public  
   Transportation in Tazewell and Woodford Counties 

 
  H. Executive Session – 5 ILCS 120/2(c)(1) – Personnel  

 
E-24-76  I. Recommend to approve Employment Agreement with Administrator Michael  
   Deluhery 
 

   V.  Appointments and Reappointments  
 

E-24-72  A. Recommend to approve appointment of Meghan Brake to the Human  
   Services Transportation Planning Commission. 

 
E-24-86  B. Recommend to approve appointment of Richard Jameson to the Tremont  
   Fire Protection District 

1



    
  

  

  

  

  

          VI.  Unfinished Business 

    A.    Discussion: Buildings Update 
   

    VII.   Reports / Communications  
  
   VIII.   Recess 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Members: Chairman David Zimmerman, Vice Chairman Michael Harris,  
Bill Atkins, Nick Graff, Jay Hall, Kim Joesting, Greg Longfellow,  

Greg Menold, Dave Mingus, Nancy Proehl,  
Tammy Rich-Stimson, Max Schneider 

2



 

1 

M inutes pending approval  
 
Executive Committee Meeting 
Jury Commission Room – McKenzie Building 
Wednesday, June 19, 2024 – 4:02 p.m. 

 
Committee Members Present: Chairman David Zimmerman, Bill Atkins, Nick 

Graff, Jay Hall, Kim Joesting, Greg Longfellow, 
Dave Mingus, Nancy Proehl, Greg Menold, Tammy 
Rich-Stimson 

 
Committee Members Absent: Vice-Chair Mike Harris, Max Schneider 

 
Others Attending: Mike Deluhery, County Administrator  

   
PUBLIC COMMENT:  Bill Funkhouser stated that he is the Republican party 

     candidate for the Tazewell County Auditor. He stated that he 
     was asked to run and he thinks he has skills and abilities that  
     would add value to the County. Mr. Funkhouser provided a  
     handout to the members which included his resume, student  
     support letters, and a Summary of Predictive Index Results.  

 
MOTION  MOTION BY MEMBER GRAFF, SECOND BY MEMBER 

JOESTING to approve the minutes of the May 22, 2024  
 
   On voice vote, MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
MOTION 
E-24-54 MOTION BY MEMBER GRAFF, SECOND BY MEMBER 

JOESTING to recommend to approve six month review of 
Executive Session minutes by the State’s Attorney’s Office 

 
   On voice vote, MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
MOTION 
E-24-73 MOTION BY MEMBER HALL, SECOND BY MEMBER 

LONGFELLOW to recommend to approve amendments to 
Chapter 95: Food Establishments 

 
Food Program Manager Adam Bazzetta provided a handout and 
provided an overview of the suggested changes to the cottage 
food operation, food pantry,  enforcement provisions, and 
certified food protection manager language.  

 
   On voice vote, MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
 

 

3



2 

 
MOTION 
E-24-78 MOTION BY MEMBER ATKINS, SECOND BY MEMBER 

PROEHL to recommend to approve precinct boundaries and 
polling location 

 
   On voice vote, MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
MOTION 
E-24-79 MOTION BY MEMBER ATKINS, SECOND BY MEMBER 

GRAFF to approve the Energy Transition Grant – Phase II 
Submittal 

 
 EMA Director Dawn Cook stated that we were awarded 

$550,310 and we awarded grant funds to 11 stakeholders.  
 
   On voice vote, MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
MOTION 
E-24-80 MOTION BY MEMBER ATKINS, SECOND BY MEMBER 

LONGFELLOW to recommend to approve Decommissioning 
Agreement for Green Valley Renewables, LLC 

 
 Community Development Administrator Jaclynn Workman stated 

that she has provided an amended expense table that includes 
the 2.5% inflation rate.  

 
 MOTION BY MEMBER MENOLD, SECOND BY MEMBER 

ATKINS to amend the Decommissioning Agreement for Green 
Valley Renewables, LLC 

 
   On voice vote, MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

On voice vote, MOTION AS AMENDED CARRIED 
UNANIMOUSLY 

 
MOTION 
E-24-77 MOTION BY MEMBER MINGUS, SECOND BY MEMBER 

MENOLD to recommend to approve referendum language 
regarding the office of the elected County Auditor 

 
 Chairman David Zimmerman stated that he will be advocating 

for this. He stated that most counties do not have an auditor. He 
stated there are just a handful of auditors in the State of Illinois.  

 
 Member Proehl stated she would be comfortable waiting two 

years and reevaluating.  

4



3 

 Member Atkins stated that he is in favor of having the voters 
decide.  

 
 Member Mingus stated that he is in favor of eliminating the 

position.  
 
 Member Hall stated that it’s too fresh in the mind’s of the voters 

and he believed it would get voted down.  
 
 Member Graff questioned if it would be appropriate to amend 

the resolution to make it effective in November of 2026.  
 
 Administrator Mike Deluhery stated that he believes for this 

statute it states it has to be on the next general election cycle.  
 
 Member Longfellow stated that he believes the county board 

should be able to control the position. 
  
 On roll call vote, MOTION CARRIED  
 
 Members Atkins and Longfellow voted nay 
 
MOTION 
E-24-69 MOTION BY MEMBER PROEHL, SECOND BY MEMBER 

ATKINS to reappointment of Dr. Steven Dickey to the Board of 
Health 

 
   On voice vote, MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
MOTION 
E-24-70 MOTION BY MEMBER PROEHL, SECOND BY MEMBER 

ATKINS to reappointment of Bobbi Mullis to the Board of Health 
 
   On voice vote, MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
MOTION 
E-24-71 MOTION BY MEMBER PROEHL, SECOND BY MEMBER 

ATKINS to reappointment of Gary Burton to the Board of 
Health 

 
   On voice vote, MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
MOTION 
E-24-74 MOTION BY MEMBER PROEHL, SECOND BY MEMBER 

ATKINS to appointment of Eric Schmidgall to the Tazewell 
Woodford Youth Services Board 

 

5



4 

   On voice vote, MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
MOTION MOTION BY MEMBER ATKINS, SECOND BY MEMBER 

GRAFF to move the Committee into Executive Session 
under 5 ILCS 120/2(c)(8) – Security Procedures at 4:45 
p.m. 

 
   On voice vote, MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 

 
The Committee was moved out of Executive Session at 
5:04 p.m. 

 
 
MOTION MOTION BY MEMBER RICH-STIMSON, SECOND BY 

MEMBER ATKINS to move the Committee into Executive 
Session under 5 ILCS 120/2(c)(1) – Personnel Matters at 
5:05 p.m. 

 
   On voice vote, MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 

The Committee was moved out of Executive Session at 
5:20 p.m. 

 
 
Chairman Zimmerman recessed the meeting at 5:20 p.m. 

 
       (transcribed by S. Gullette)  
  

6



 

1 

M inutes pending approval  
 
In-Place Executive Committee Meeting 
Jury Commission Room – McKenzie Building 
Wednesday, June 26, 2024 – 7:49 p.m. 

 
Committee Members Present: Chairman David Zimmerman, Bill Atkins, Nick 

Graff, Jay Hall, Kim Joesting, Greg Longfellow, 
Dave Mingus, Nancy Proehl, Greg Menold, Tammy 
Rich-Stimson, Max Schneider 

 
Committee Members Absent: Vice-Chair Mike Harris 

 
Others Attending: Mike Deluhery, County Administrator  

   
 
MOTION 
E-24-81 MOTION BY MEMBER HALL, SECOND BY MEMBER 

PROEHL to recommend to approve emergency declaration for 
Townline Bridge over Prairie Creek 

 
 County Engineer Dan Parr stated that during the afternoon of 

June 13th an approximately 50 ton truck hit the north side of the 
bridge on Townline Road over Prairie Creek and took the entire 
concrete railing off.  

 
   On voice vote, MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
MOTION 
E-24-82 MOTION BY MEMBER RICH-STIMSON, SECOND BY 

MEMBER JOESTING to recommend to approve internet 
service agreements with Stratus Networks 

 
 Administrator Mike Deluhery stated that this is to provide 

internet service directly to the Tremont Campus and Broadway 
building.  

 
   On voice vote, MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
MOTION 
E-24-83 MOTION BY MEMBER ATKINS, SECOND BY MEMBER 

RICH-STIMSON to recommend to approve internet service 
agreements with i3 Broadband, LLC 

 
 Administrator Mike Deluhery stated that this is to convert the 

TLS service connecting downtown Pekin to the Tremont campus 

 

7



2 

to a direct internet service at the Tremont campus. He stated 
that this also provides new internet to the Broadway building. 

 
 Member Joesting stated that the contact information on pages 

11 and 17 were incorrect.  
 
 Administrator Deluhery stated that those would be updated with 

the correct information.  
 
   On voice vote, MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
MOTION 
E-24-84 MOTION BY MEMBER MENOLD, SECOND BY MEMBER 

LONGFELLOW to approve fully managed IT service agreement 
with Heart Technologies, Inc.  

  
   On voice vote, MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
 

 
Chairman Zimmerman recessed the meeting at 7:53 p.m. 

 
       (transcribed by S. Gullette)  
  

8



  
 
 

 COMMITTEE REPORT   E-24-59 
 
Mr. Chairman and Members of the Tazewell County Board: 
 
Your Executive Committees have considered the following RESOLUTION and 
recommends that it be adopted by the Board: 
 
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

R E S O L U T I O N 
 

WHEREAS, the County’s Executive Committee recommends the adoption of the Election 
Judge List presented by the County Clerk; and 
 
WHEREAS, Illinois State Statutes in 10 ILCS 5/13-2 requires the county board at its 
meeting in July in each even-numbered year to select in each election precinct in the 
county, five capable and discreet persons to be judges of election who shall possess the 
qualifications required by the Act. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the County Board approve this recommendation. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Clerk notifies the County Board Office, the 
County Clerk and the Elections’ Supervisor of this action. 
 
PASSED THIS 31st DAY OF JULY, 2024. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
________________________________  ________________________________ 
Tazewell County Clerk    Tazewell County Board Chairman 
 

9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



E-24-75 
 COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
Mr. Chairman and Members of the Tazewell County Board: 
 
Your Executive Committees have considered the following RESOLUTION and 
recommends that it be adopted by the Board: 
 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 

R E S O L U T I O N 
 

WHEREAS, the Executive Committee recommends to the County Board to approve the 
formal appointment of Eric Stahl to the Tazewell County Board; and  
 
WHEREAS, Eric Stahl will serve out the unexpired term in District 2 of Randi Krehbiel as 
prescribed by law. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the County Board approve this recommendation. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Clerk notifies the County Board Office and 
Payroll of this action. 
 
PASSED THIS 31st DAY OF JULY, 2024. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
________________________________  ________________________________ 
Tazewell County Clerk    Tazewell County Board Chairman 

176



E-24-85  
COMMITTEE REPORT 

 
Mr. Chairman and Members of the Tazewell County Board: 
 
Your Executive Committee has considered the following RESOLUTION and recommends 
that it be adopted by the Board: 
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

R E S O L U T I O N 
 

WHEREAS, the Executive Committee recommends to the County Board to approve a 
national opioid settlement agreement; and  
 
WHEREAS, a settlement agreement has been reached with Kroger; and 
 
WHEREAS, a Participation Form for the settlement must be executed and submitted 
before the August 12, 2024 deadline in order to be considered for initial participation 
calculations and payment eligibility; and 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the County Board approve the recommendation and 
authorize the County Board Chairman to sign and execute all documents related to the 
settlement. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Clerk notifies the County Board Office, the 
Treasurer and the Auditor of this action. 
 
PASSED THIS 31st DAY OF JULY, 2024. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
________________________________  ________________________________ 
Tazewell County Clerk    Tazewell County Board Chairman 

177



New National Opioids Settlement: Kroger
Opioids Implementation Administrator
opioidsparticipation@rubris.com

Tazewell County, IL
Reference Number: CL-791520

TO LOCAL POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS:
 

THIS PACKAGE CONTAINS DOCUMENTATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE NEW
NATIONAL OPIOIDS SETTLEMENT. YOU MUST TAKE ACTION IN ORDER TO

PARTICIPATE.

Deadline:   August 12, 2024  

A new proposed national opioids settlement (“New National Opioids Settlement”)
has been reached with Kroger (“Settling Defendant”). This Participation Package is
a follow-up communication to the  Notice of National  Opioids Settlement  recently
received electronically by your subdivision. 

You are receiving this  Participation Package  because Illinois is participating in the
Kroger settlement.

If a state does not participate in a particular Settlement, the subdivisions in that
state are not eligible to participate in that Settlement.

This electronic envelope contains: 

 The Participation Form for the Kroger settlement, including a release of any
claims.

 The Illinois Opioid Allocation Agreement 

The  Participation  Form  must  be  executed,  without  alteration,  and
submitted on or before August 12, 2024, in order for your subdivision to
be considered for initial participation calculations and payment eligibility. 

Based upon subdivision participation forms received on or before August 12, 2024,
the subdivision participation rate will be used to determine whether participation is
sufficient  for  the  settlement  to  move  forward  and  whether  a  state  earns  its
maximum  potential  payment  under  the  settlement.  If  the  settlement  moves
forward, your release will become effective. If a settlement does not move forward,
that release will not become effective. 

Any subdivision that does  not participate cannot directly share in the settlement
funds, even if the subdivision’s state is settling and other participating subdivisions
are sharing in settlement funds. Any subdivision that does not participate may also
reduce the amount of money for programs to remediate the opioid crisis in its state.
Please note, a subdivision will not necessarily directly receive settlement funds by
participating; decisions on how settlement funds will be allocated within a state are
subject to intrastate agreements or state statutes.

Docusign Envelope ID: 4B15E6C2-41AA-4AAD-B3C3-F9301636AAA2

178

mailto:opioidsparticipation@rubris.com


You are encouraged to discuss the terms and benefits of the New National Opioids
Settlement with your counsel, your Attorney General’s Office, and other contacts
within your state. 

Monies coming to Illinois from the New National Opioids Settlement will be allocated
in  accordance  with  the  Illinois  Opioid  Allocation  Agreement,  a  copy  of  which  is
included  with  this  packet  for  your  reference.  As  stated  above,  even  if  your
subdivision is listed in the Illinois Opioid Allocation Agreement as one eligible to
receive  a  direct  share  of  opioid  settlement  monies,  you  still  must  sign  the
Participation Form for this new settlement in order to receive a direct distribution.
Additionally,  please note that pursuant to Paragraphs 2.B and 2.C of the Illinois
Opioid Allocation  Agreement,  when notified by the Illinois Attorney General  that
Illinois has reached a settlement with one or more Opioid Defendants, participating
local governments shall release their claims against such Opioid Defendant(s).

Information and documents regarding the New National Opioids Settlement can be
found  on  the  national  settlement  website  at
https://nationalopioidsettlement.com/. This  website  will  be  supplemented  as
additional documents are created.

How to return signed forms:

There are three methods for returning the executed  Participation Form and any
supporting documentation to the Implementation Administrator:

(1) Electronic  Signature  via  DocuSign:  Executing  the  Participation  Form
electronically  through  DocuSign  will  return  the  signed  form  to  the
Implementation  Administrator  and  associate  your  form  with  your
subdivision’s records.  Electronic signature is the most efficient method for
returning the  Participation Form, allowing for more timely participation and
the potential to meet higher settlement payment thresholds, and is therefore
strongly encouraged. 

(2) Manual  Signature  returned  via  DocuSign:  DocuSign  allows  forms  to  be
downloaded,  signed  manually,  then  uploaded  to  DocuSign  and  returned
automatically  to  the  Implementation  Administrator.  Please  be  sure  to
complete all fields. As with electronic signature, returning a manually signed
Participation Form via DocuSign will associate your signed forms with your
subdivision’s records.

(3) Manual Signature returned via electronic mail: If your subdivision is unable to
return  an  executed  Participation  Form using  DocuSign,  the  signed
Participation  Form may  be  returned  via  electronic  mail  to
opioidsparticipation@rubris.com.  Please  include  the  name,  state,  and
reference ID of your subdivision in the body of the email and use the subject
line Settlement Participation Form – [Subdivision Name, Subdivision State] –
[Reference ID].

Docusign Envelope ID: 4B15E6C2-41AA-4AAD-B3C3-F9301636AAA2

179

mailto:opioidsparticipation@rubris.com
https://nationalopioidsettlement.com/


Detailed instructions on how to sign and return the  Participation Form, including
changing  the  authorized  signer,  can  be  found  at
https://nationalopioidsettlement.com. You  may  also  contact
opioidsparticipation@rubris.com.

The sign-on period for subdivisions ends on August 12, 2024. 

If you have any questions about executing the Participation Form, please contact 
your counsel, the Implementation Administrator at opioidsparticipation@rubris.com,
or the Illinois Attorney General’s Office at opioidsettlement@ilag.gov. 

Thank you, 
 
New National Opioids Settlement Implementation Administrator

The  Implementation  Administrator  is retained  to  provide  the  settlement  notice
required by the New National Opioids Settlement and to manage the collection of
the Participation Form.

Docusign Envelope ID: 4B15E6C2-41AA-4AAD-B3C3-F9301636AAA2

180

mailto:opioidsettlement@ilag.gov
mailto:opioidsparticipation@rubris.com
mailto:opioidsparticipation@rubris.com
https://nationalopioidsettlement.com/


Subdivision Participation and Release Form

Governmental Entity: Tazewell County State: IL
Authorized Signatory: /officialname_kroger/
Address 1: /address1_kroger/
Address 2: /address2_kroger/
City, State, Zip: /cit_kr/                                     /state_kr/                       /zi_kr/
Phone: /phone_kroger/
Email: /email_kroger/

The governmental entity identified above (“Governmental Entity”), in order to obtain and
in consideration for the benefits provided to the Governmental Entity pursuant to the Settlement
Agreement dated March 22, 2024 (“Kroger Settlement”), and acting through the undersigned
authorized official,  hereby elects  to participate in the Kroger Settlement,  release all Released
Claims against all Released Entities, and agrees as follows.  

1. The  Governmental  Entity  is  aware  of  and  has  reviewed  the  Kroger  Settlement,
understands that  all  terms  in  this  Participation  and Release  Form have the  meanings
defined therein, and agrees that by executing this Participation and Release Form, the
Governmental  Entity  elects  to  participate  in  the  Kroger  Settlement  and  become  a
Participating Subdivision as provided therein. 

2. The Governmental Entity shall promptly, and in any event no later than 14 days after the
Reference Date and prior to the filing of the Consent Judgment,  dismiss with prejudice
any Released Claims that it has filed.  With respect to any Released Claims pending in In
re National  Prescription Opiate  Litigation,  MDL No.  2804,  the Governmental  Entity
authorizes  the  Plaintiffs’  Executive  Committee  to  execute  and  file  on  behalf  of  the
Governmental Entity a Stipulation of Dismissal with Prejudice substantially in the form
found at https://nationalopioidsettlement.com/.

3. The Governmental  Entity  agrees  to  the  terms  of  the  Kroger  Settlement  pertaining  to
Participating Subdivisions as defined therein. 

4. By  agreeing  to  the  terms  of  the  Kroger  Settlement  and  becoming  a  Releasor,  the
Governmental Entity is entitled to the benefits provided therein, including, if applicable,
monetary payments beginning after the Effective Date. 

5. The  Governmental  Entity  agrees  to  use  any  monies  it  receives  through  the  Kroger
Settlement solely for the purposes provided therein.  

6. The Governmental Entity submits to the jurisdiction of the court in the Governmental
Entity’s state where the Consent Judgment is filed for purposes limited to that court’s role
as  provided  in,  and  for  resolving  disputes  to  the  extent  provided  in,  the  Kroger
Settlement.   The Governmental Entity likewise agrees to arbitrate before the National

1

Docusign Envelope ID: 4B15E6C2-41AA-4AAD-B3C3-F9301636AAA2

181



Arbitration  Panel  as  provided  in,  and  for  resolving  disputes  to  the  extent  otherwise
provided in, the Kroger Settlement.

7. The Governmental  Entity  has  the right  to  enforce the Kroger Settlement  as provided
therein.

8. The Governmental Entity, as a Participating Subdivision, hereby becomes a Releasor for
all  purposes  in  the  Kroger  Settlement,  including  without  limitation  all  provisions  of
Section  XI  (Release),  and  along  with  all  departments,  agencies,  divisions,  boards,
commissions,  districts,  instrumentalities  of any kind and attorneys,  and any person in
their official capacity elected or appointed to serve any of the foregoing and any agency,
person, or other entity claiming by or through any of the foregoing, and any other entity
identified in the definition of Releasor, provides for a release to the fullest extent of its
authority.  As a Releasor, the Governmental Entity hereby absolutely, unconditionally,
and irrevocably covenants not to bring, file, or claim, or to cause, assist or permit to be
brought, filed,  or claimed,  or to otherwise seek to establish liability for any Released
Claims against any Released Entity in any forum whatsoever.  The releases provided for
in the Kroger Settlement are intended by the Parties to be broad and shall be interpreted
so as to give the Released Entities the broadest possible bar against any liability relating
in  any  way  to  Released  Claims  and  extend  to  the  full  extent  of  the  power  of  the
Governmental Entity to release claims.  The Kroger Settlement shall be a complete bar to
any Released Claim.

9. The Governmental Entity hereby takes on all  rights and obligations of a Participating
Subdivision as set forth in the Kroger Settlement.

10. In  connection  with  the  releases  provided  for  in  the  Kroger  Settlement,  each
Governmental  Entity  expressly  waives,  releases,  and  forever  discharges  any  and  all
provisions,  rights,  and benefits  conferred  by any law of  any state  or  territory  of  the
United  States  or  other  jurisdiction,  or  principle  of  common  law,  which  is  similar,
comparable, or equivalent to § 1542 of the California Civil Code, which reads:

General Release; extent.  A general release does not extend to claims that
the creditor or releasing party does not know or suspect to exist in his or
her favor at the time of executing the release that, if known by him or her
would have materially affected his or her settlement with the debtor or
released party.

A Releasor  may  hereafter  discover  facts  other  than  or  different  from those  which  it
knows, believes,  or assumes to be true with respect to the Released Claims, but each
Governmental  Entity  hereby  expressly  waives  and  fully,  finally,  and  forever  settles,
releases and discharges, upon the Effective Date, any and all Released Claims that may
exist  as  of  such date  but  which  Releasors  do  not  know or  suspect  to  exist,  whether
through  ignorance,  oversight,  error,  negligence  or  through  no  fault  whatsoever,  and
which,  if  known,  would  materially  affect  the  Governmental  Entities’  decision  to
participate in the Kroger Settlement.

2

Docusign Envelope ID: 4B15E6C2-41AA-4AAD-B3C3-F9301636AAA2

182



11. Nothing herein is intended to modify in any way the terms of the Kroger Settlement, to
which Governmental Entity hereby agrees.  To the extent this Participation and Release
Form is interpreted differently from the Kroger Settlement in any respect, the Kroger
Settlement controls.  

I have all necessary power and authorization to execute this Participation and Release
Form on behalf of the Governmental Entity.

Signature: /signer_1_kroger/                                       

Name: /name_1_kroger/                                        

Title: /title_1_kroger/                                          

Date: /date_1_kroger/                                          

3

Docusign Envelope ID: 4B15E6C2-41AA-4AAD-B3C3-F9301636AAA2

183



Docusign Envelope ID: 4B15E6C2-41AA-4AAD-B3C3-F9301636AAA2

184



Docusign Envelope ID: 4B15E6C2-41AA-4AAD-B3C3-F9301636AAA2

185



Docusign Envelope ID: 4B15E6C2-41AA-4AAD-B3C3-F9301636AAA2

186



Docusign Envelope ID: 4B15E6C2-41AA-4AAD-B3C3-F9301636AAA2

187



Docusign Envelope ID: 4B15E6C2-41AA-4AAD-B3C3-F9301636AAA2

188



Docusign Envelope ID: 4B15E6C2-41AA-4AAD-B3C3-F9301636AAA2

189



Docusign Envelope ID: 4B15E6C2-41AA-4AAD-B3C3-F9301636AAA2

190



Docusign Envelope ID: 4B15E6C2-41AA-4AAD-B3C3-F9301636AAA2

191



Docusign Envelope ID: 4B15E6C2-41AA-4AAD-B3C3-F9301636AAA2

192



Docusign Envelope ID: 4B15E6C2-41AA-4AAD-B3C3-F9301636AAA2

193



Docusign Envelope ID: 4B15E6C2-41AA-4AAD-B3C3-F9301636AAA2

194



Docusign Envelope ID: 4B15E6C2-41AA-4AAD-B3C3-F9301636AAA2

195



Docusign Envelope ID: 4B15E6C2-41AA-4AAD-B3C3-F9301636AAA2

196



Docusign Envelope ID: 4B15E6C2-41AA-4AAD-B3C3-F9301636AAA2

197



Docusign Envelope ID: 4B15E6C2-41AA-4AAD-B3C3-F9301636AAA2

198



Docusign Envelope ID: 4B15E6C2-41AA-4AAD-B3C3-F9301636AAA2

199



Docusign Envelope ID: 4B15E6C2-41AA-4AAD-B3C3-F9301636AAA2

200



Docusign Envelope ID: 4B15E6C2-41AA-4AAD-B3C3-F9301636AAA2

201



Docusign Envelope ID: 4B15E6C2-41AA-4AAD-B3C3-F9301636AAA2

202



Docusign Envelope ID: 4B15E6C2-41AA-4AAD-B3C3-F9301636AAA2

203



Docusign Envelope ID: 4B15E6C2-41AA-4AAD-B3C3-F9301636AAA2

204



Docusign Envelope ID: 4B15E6C2-41AA-4AAD-B3C3-F9301636AAA2

205



Docusign Envelope ID: 4B15E6C2-41AA-4AAD-B3C3-F9301636AAA2

206



Docusign Envelope ID: 4B15E6C2-41AA-4AAD-B3C3-F9301636AAA2

207



Docusign Envelope ID: 4B15E6C2-41AA-4AAD-B3C3-F9301636AAA2

208



Docusign Envelope ID: 4B15E6C2-41AA-4AAD-B3C3-F9301636AAA2

209



Docusign Envelope ID: 4B15E6C2-41AA-4AAD-B3C3-F9301636AAA2

210



Docusign Envelope ID: 4B15E6C2-41AA-4AAD-B3C3-F9301636AAA2

211



Docusign Envelope ID: 4B15E6C2-41AA-4AAD-B3C3-F9301636AAA2

212



Docusign Envelope ID: 4B15E6C2-41AA-4AAD-B3C3-F9301636AAA2

213



Docusign Envelope ID: 4B15E6C2-41AA-4AAD-B3C3-F9301636AAA2

214



Docusign Envelope ID: 4B15E6C2-41AA-4AAD-B3C3-F9301636AAA2

215



Docusign Envelope ID: 4B15E6C2-41AA-4AAD-B3C3-F9301636AAA2

216



Docusign Envelope ID: 4B15E6C2-41AA-4AAD-B3C3-F9301636AAA2

217



Docusign Envelope ID: 4B15E6C2-41AA-4AAD-B3C3-F9301636AAA2

218



Docusign Envelope ID: 4B15E6C2-41AA-4AAD-B3C3-F9301636AAA2

219



Docusign Envelope ID: 4B15E6C2-41AA-4AAD-B3C3-F9301636AAA2

220



Docusign Envelope ID: 4B15E6C2-41AA-4AAD-B3C3-F9301636AAA2

221



Docusign Envelope ID: 4B15E6C2-41AA-4AAD-B3C3-F9301636AAA2

222



Docusign Envelope ID: 4B15E6C2-41AA-4AAD-B3C3-F9301636AAA2

223



Docusign Envelope ID: 4B15E6C2-41AA-4AAD-B3C3-F9301636AAA2

224



Docusign Envelope ID: 4B15E6C2-41AA-4AAD-B3C3-F9301636AAA2

225



Docusign Envelope ID: 4B15E6C2-41AA-4AAD-B3C3-F9301636AAA2

226



Docusign Envelope ID: 4B15E6C2-41AA-4AAD-B3C3-F9301636AAA2

227



Docusign Envelope ID: 4B15E6C2-41AA-4AAD-B3C3-F9301636AAA2

228



Docusign Envelope ID: 4B15E6C2-41AA-4AAD-B3C3-F9301636AAA2

229



Docusign Envelope ID: 4B15E6C2-41AA-4AAD-B3C3-F9301636AAA2

230



Docusign Envelope ID: 4B15E6C2-41AA-4AAD-B3C3-F9301636AAA2

231



Docusign Envelope ID: 4B15E6C2-41AA-4AAD-B3C3-F9301636AAA2

232



E-24-87  
COMMITTEE REPORT 

 
Mr. Chairman and Members of the Tazewell County Board: 
 
Your Executive Committee has considered the following RESOLUTION and recommends 
that it be adopted by the Board: 
 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 

R E S O L U T I O N 
 

WHEREAS, the Executive Committee recommends to the County Board to authorize the 
3rd quarterly payment for 2024 per the agreement between Tazewell County and the 
Greater Peoria Economic Development Council; and  
 
WHEREAS, Resolution E-24-14 approved an agreement with GPEDC for twelve months 
from January 1, 2024 through December 31, 2024; and 
 
WHEREAS, Tazewell County agreed to pay the Greater Peoria Economic Development 
Council quarterly installments for the term of this Agreement provided that the full 
County Board approves based upon quarterly review of GPEDC performance.  
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the County Board approve the recommendation and 
authorize payment of the 3rd quarter investment for 2024. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Clerk notifies the County Board Office, 
Greater Peoria Economic Development Council, Finance, and the Auditor of this action. 
 
PASSED THIS 31st DAY OF JULY, 2024. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
________________________________  ________________________________ 
Tazewell County Clerk     Tazewell County Board Chairman 

233



Invoice
Date

7/1/2024

Invoice #

2024_07-8.3

Bill To

Tazewell County
David Zimmerman
11 S. Fourth St., Suite 432
Pekin, IL 61554

401 NE Jefferson Ave.
Peoria IL 61603
Tel. (309) 495-5910

Due Date

8/31/2024

Total

Description Amount

2024 Investment  - 3 of 4 18,750.00

$18,750.00

234



COMMITTEE REPORT

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Tazewell County Board:

Your Executive Committees have considered the following RESOLUTION and recommends 
that it be adopted by the Board:

RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, the County acquired the following described real property as and for right-

of-way from Ira James Dawson and Sharon L. Dawson for the purpose of 

constructing improvements to Broadway Road: 

A part of the Northeast Quarter of Section 5, Township 24 North, Range 4 West 

of the Third Principal Meridian, Tazewell County, Illinois and being more 

particularly described as follows:  

Commencing at the northeast corner of said Northeast Quarter of Section 5, 

thence South 89 degrees 05 minutes 55 seconds West, along the north line of the 

Northeast Quarter of Section 5, a distance of 648.93 feet; thence South 00 degrees 

54 minutes 05 seconds East, a distance of 51.10 feet to a point being on the 

existing southerly right of way line of Broadway Road; thence South 89 

degrees 06 minutes 48 seconds West, along said existing southerly right of way 

line, a distance of 129.84 feet to the Point of Beginning;  

Thence continuing South 89 degrees 06 minutes 48 seconds West, along 

said existing southerly right of way line, a distance of 109.14 feet to a point 

being on the proposed southerly right of way line, the following three courses are 

along said proposed right of way line; thence North 00 degrees 52 minutes 09 

seconds West, a distance of 9.96 feet; thence North 89 degrees 07 minutes 51 

seconds East, a distance of 109.14 feet; thence South 00 degrees 52 minutes 09 

seconds East, a distance of 9.93 feet to the Point of Beginning, and containing 

1,086 square feet, more or less, or 0.025 acres, more or less, situated in the 

County of Tazewell, State of Illinois. 

PIN:  Part of 11-11-05-200-017 

which real property is generally located on Broadway Road, Pekin, Illinois and is currently 

not being used for right of way purposes (the “Dawson Property”); and  

WHEREAS, the County acquired the following described real property as and for right-

of-way from the Sherman Real Estate, LLC – Pekin 1 Series for the purpose of constructing 

improvements to Broadway Road: 

A part of the Southeast Quarter of Section 32, Township 25 North, Range 4 West 

of the Third Principal Meridian, Tazewell County, Illinois and being more 

particularly described as follows:  

Commencing at the southeast corner of said Southeast Quarter of Section 32, 

thence South 89 degrees 05 minutes 55 seconds West, along the south line of 

the said Southeast Quarter of Section 32, a distance of 498.51 feet; thence North

E-24-88

235



2 

00 degrees 54 minutes 05 seconds West, a distance of 38.93 feet to a point being 

on the existing northerly right of way line of Broadway Road, said point also 

being on the proposed right of way line, as the Point of Beginning;  

The following two courses are along said proposed right of way line; thence 

South 89 degrees 07 minutes 59 seconds West, a distance of 157 .15 feet; thence 

North 00 degrees 52 minutes 37 seconds West, a distance of 15.66 feet to a point 

being on said existing northerly right of way line; thence South 85 degrees 10 

minutes 34 seconds East, along said existing northerly right of way line, a 

distance of 157.93 feet to the Point of Beginning and containing 1,231 square 

feet, more or less, or 0.028 acres, more or less, situated in the County of 

Tazewell, State of Illinois. 

PIN:  Part of 05-05-32-400-005 

which real property is generally located on Broadway Road, Pekin, Illinois and is currently not 

being used for right of way purposes (the “Sherman Property”); and  

WHEREAS, the County Board has determined that it is no longer necessary, appropriate, 

or in the best interests of the County that it retain title to both the Dawson Property and the Sherman 

Property, and that both the Dawson Property and the Sherman Property are not required for the 

use of, or profitable to, the County; and 

WHEREAS, both the Dawson Property and the Sherman Property, because of their 

respective sizes and locations have no value for purposes of sale, and are an actual liability to the 

County for purposes of maintenance and general upkeep; and 

WHEREAS, the County Board finds and determines that the best interests of the County 

and its residents will be served by conveying the Dawson Property to Ira James Dawson and 

Sharon L. Dawson; and 

WHEREAS, the County Board finds and determines that the best interests of the County 

and its residents will be served by conveying the Sherman Property to the Sherman Real Estate, 

LLC – Pekin 1 Series; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the County Board of the County of 

Tazewell and State of Illinois, as follows: 

Section One: The foregoing recitals are incorporated herein as findings of the County 

Board. 

Section Two:  The Chairman of the County Board is hereby authorized and directed to 

convey and transfer the Dawson Property to Ira James Dawson and Sharon L. Dawson by a proper 

deed of conveyance, and the County Clerk is hereby authorized to acknowledge and attest such 

deed and to affix thereto the seal of the County. 

236



3 

Section Three:  The Chairman of the County Board is hereby authorized and 

directed to convey and transfer the Dawson Property to Ira James Dawson and Sharon L. Dawson 

by a proper deed of conveyance, and the County Clerk is hereby authorized to acknowledge and 

attest such deed and to affix thereto the seal of the County. 

Section Four: The Chairman and the Clerk are hereby authorized, respectively, to execute 

and attest such other documents as may be necessary to the conveyance herein authorized. 

Section Five: This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage by 

the County Board, and approval in the manner provided by law. 

PASSED THIS ____ DAY OF ____________, 2024. 

Tazewell County Board Chairman 

ATTEST: 

__________________________________ 

Tazewell County Clerk 

237



This instrument prepared by: 
 
BLACK, BLACK & BROWN 
115 Washington Square 
Washington, IL 61571 
 
Return document to: 
 
BLACK, BLACK & BROWN 
115 Washington Square 
Washington, IL 61571 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS INDENTURE WITNESSETH that the Grantor, COUNTY OF TAZEWELL in 
the STATE OF ILLINOIS, an Illinois unit of local government, organized and existing under 
and by virtue of the laws of the State of Illinois, having its principal office at 11 S. 4th Street, Suite 
432, Pekin, Illinois, for and in consideration of the sum of ONE DOLLAR ($1.00) and other good 
and valuable consideration, in hand paid, CONVEYS AND WARRANTS to SHERMAN REAL 
ESTATE, LLC – PEKIN 1 SERIES, an Illinois series limited liability company, the following-
described real estate, to-wit:   
 

A part of the Southeast Quarter of Section 32, Township 25 North, Range 4 West 
of the Third Principal Meridian, Tazewell County, Illinois and being more 
particularly described as follows:  
 
Commencing at the southeast corner of said Southeast Quarter of Section 32, thence 
South 89 degrees 05 minutes 55 seconds West, along the south line of the said 
Southeast Quarter of Section 32, a distance of 498.51 feet; thence North 00 degrees 
54 minutes 05 seconds West, a distance of 38.93 feet to a point being on the existing 
northerly right of way line of Broadway Road, said point also being on the proposed 
right of way line, as the Point of Beginning;  
 
The following two courses are along said proposed right of way line; thence South 
89 degrees 07 minutes 59 seconds West, a distance of 157 .15 feet; thence North 
00 degrees 52 minutes 37 seconds West, a distance of 15.66 feet to a point being 
on said existing northerly right of way line; thence South 85 degrees 10 minutes 34 
seconds East, along said existing northerly right of way line, a distance of 157.93 
feet to the Point of Beginning and containing 1,231 square feet, more or less, or 

 
CORPORATE WARRANTY DEED 

 

238



2 
 

0.028 acres, more or less, situated in the County of Tazewell, State of Illinois. 
 
PIN:  Part of 05-05-32-400-005 
 
This deed is made, executed, and delivered pursuant to authority given by the County 

Board of said Illinois unit of local government.   
This conveyance is made subject to easements and restrictions of record and to real estate 

taxes subsequent to the year 2023 and thereafter. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said County of Tazewell, an Illinois unit of local 

government, has caused its corporate seal to be affixed and these presents to be signed by its 
Chairman, and attested by its County Clerk, this ______ day of ______________, 2024. 
 

COUNTY OF TAZEWELL, ILLINOIS, 
an Illinois unit of local government 
 

 
 

By        
        Its Chairman  
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________ 

County Clerk 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF ILLINOIS, )  
    ) ss. 
COUNTY OF TAZEWELL, ) 
 

I, _____________________________, a notary public, in and for said County in the State 
aforesaid, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that DAVID ZIMMERMAN, personally known to me to be 
the Chairman of the Tazewell County Board, and JOHN C. ACKERMAN, personally known to 
me to be the County Clerk of said Illinois unit of local government, whose names are subscribed 
to the foregoing instrument, appeared before me this day in person and acknowledged that as such 
Chairman and County Clerk they signed and delivered the said instrument of writing as Chairman 
and County Clerk of said Illinois unit of local government, and caused the seal of said Illinois unit 
of local government to be affixed thereto, pursuant to authority given by the County Board of said 
Illinois unit of local government as their free and voluntary act, and as the free and voluntary act  
  

239



3 
 

and deed of said Illinois unit of local government for the uses and purposes therein set forth.   
 

GIVEN under my hand and notarial seal this ______ day of ______________, 2024. 
 
 

             
Notary Public   
 

MAIL TAX STATEMENT TO:   
Sherman Real Estate, LLC – Pekin 1 Series 
c/o Jack Sherman 
3361 Oak Hammock Court 
Bonita Springs, FL 34134 
 
 
 

EXEMPT 35 ILCS 200/31-45 (e) 
 

Date: ________________, 2024. 
 
 

_____________________________________________ 
Buyer, Seller or Representative 

 
 
 

240



241



This instrument prepared by: 
 
BLACK, BLACK & BROWN 
115 Washington Square 
Washington, IL 61571 
 
Return document to: 
 
BLACK, BLACK & BROWN 
115 Washington Square 
Washington, IL 61571 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS INDENTURE WITNESSETH that the Grantor, COUNTY OF TAZEWELL in 
the STATE OF ILLINOIS, an Illinois unit of local government, organized and existing under 
and by virtue of the laws of the State of Illinois, having its principal office at 11 S. 4th Street, Suite 
432, Pekin, Illinois, for and in consideration of the sum of ONE DOLLAR ($1.00) and other good 
and valuable consideration, in hand paid, CONVEYS AND WARRANTS to IRA JAMES 
DAWSON and SHARON L. DAWSON, the following-described real estate, to-wit:   
 

A part of the Northeast Quarter of Section 5, Township 24 North, Range 4 West of 
the Third Principal Meridian, Tazewell County, Illinois and being more particularly 
described as follows:  
 
Commencing at the northeast corner of said Northeast Quarter of Section 5, thence 
South 89 degrees 05 minutes 55 seconds West, along the north line of the Northeast 
Quarter of Section 5, a distance of 648.93 feet; thence South 00 degrees 54 minutes 
05 seconds East, a distance of 51.10 feet to a point being on the existing southerly 
right of way line of Broadway Road; thence South 89 degrees 06 minutes 48 
seconds West, along said existing southerly right of way line, a distance of 129.84 
feet to the Point of Beginning;  
 
Thence continuing South 89 degrees 06 minutes 48 seconds West, along said 
existing southerly right of way line, a distance of 109.14 feet to a point being on 
the proposed southerly right of way line, the following three courses are along said 
proposed right of way line; thence North 00 degrees 52 minutes 09 seconds West, 
a distance of 9.96 feet; thence North 89 degrees 07 minutes 51 seconds East, a 
distance of 109.14 feet; thence South 00 degrees 52 minutes 09 seconds East, a 

 
CORPORATE WARRANTY DEED 

 

242



2 
 

distance of 9.93 feet to the Point of Beginning, and containing 1,086 square feet, 
more or less, or 0.025 acres, more or less, situated in the County of Tazewell, State 
of Illinois. 
 
PIN:  Part of 11-11-05-200-017 
 
This deed is made, executed, and delivered pursuant to authority given by the County 

Board of said Illinois unit of local government.   
This conveyance is made subject to easements and restrictions of record and to real estate 

taxes subsequent to the year 2023 and thereafter. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said County of Tazewell, an Illinois unit of local 

government, has caused its corporate seal to be affixed and these presents to be signed by its 
Chairman, and attested by its County Clerk, this ______ day of ______________, 2024. 
 

COUNTY OF TAZEWELL, ILLINOIS, 
an Illinois unit of local government 
 

 
 

By        
        Its Chairman  
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________ 

County Clerk 
 
 
STATE OF ILLINOIS, )  
    ) ss. 
COUNTY OF TAZEWELL, ) 
 

I, _____________________________, a notary public, in and for said County in the State 
aforesaid, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that DAVID ZIMMERMAN, personally known to me to be 
the Chairman of the Tazewell County Board, and JOHN C. ACKERMAN, personally known to 
me to be the County Clerk of said Illinois unit of local government, whose names are subscribed 
to the foregoing instrument, appeared before me this day in person and acknowledged that as such 
Chairman and County Clerk they signed and delivered the said instrument of writing as Chairman 
and County Clerk of said Illinois unit of local government, and caused the seal of said Illinois unit 
of local government to be affixed thereto, pursuant to authority given by the County Board of said 
Illinois unit of local government as their free and voluntary act, and as the free and voluntary act  
  

243



3 
 

and deed of said Illinois unit of local government for the uses and purposes therein set forth.   
 

GIVEN under my hand and notarial seal this ______ day of ______________, 2024. 
 

 
 

             
Notary Public   
 
 

MAIL TAX STATEMENT TO:   
Ira James Dawson 
12 White Pine Lane 
Pekin, IL 61554 
 
 

EXEMPT 35 ILCS 200/31-45 (e) 
 

Date: ________________, 2024. 
 
 

_____________________________________________ 
Buyer, Seller or Representative 

 
 
 

244



245



    
E-24-89 

 
 COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
Mr. Chairman and Members of the Tazewell County Board: 
 
Your Executive Committee has considered the following RESOLUTION and recommends that it 
be adopted by the Board: 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

R E S O L U T I O N 
 

WHEREAS, the Executive Committee recommends approving a project change for Habitat for 
Humanity’s Year 1 Energy Transition Community Grant; and  
 
WHEREAS, an Energy Transition Community Grant Program has been created through the 
Illinois Department of Commerce and Economic Opportunity to promote economic development 
to communities that are in an area with a closure or reduced operation of a fossil fuel power 
plant, coal mine, or nuclear plant; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Powerton Station located in the unincorporated area of Tazewell County is 
scheduled to close in 2028, which qualifies Tazewell County as the host entity for the grant; and  
 
WHEREAS, Tazewell County has been awarded $461,827 for Phase 1 and the County Board had 
approved a grant award amount of $100,000 to Habitat for Humanity for the demolition of 
former Gardens Nursing Home in East Peoria for residential construction; and 
 
WHEREAS, the project is not able to move forward with the City of East Peoria providing the 
property to another buyer; and  
 
WHEREAS, Habitat for Humanity is requesting to use the $100,000 grant allocation to demolish a 
home at 1800 American Street and refurbish a home at 1814 American Street for a veteran; and 
 
WHEREAS, the project change request will be submitted to the State of Illinois.   

            
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the County Board approve this recommendation. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Board Chairman or County Administrator is 
authorized to execute and submit all documents necessary for the grant applications.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Clerk notifies the County Board Office, EMA director, 
and the Auditor of this action. 
 
PASSED THIS 31st DAY OF JULY, 2024. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________  ________________________________ 
Tazewell County Clerk     Tazewell County Board Chairman 

246



247



248



249



              E-24-90   
 COMMITTEE REPORT      
 
Mr. Chairman and Members of the Tazewell County Board: 
 
Your Executive Committee has considered the following RESOLUTION and recommends 
that it be adopted by the Board: 
 
 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 

 
R E S O L U T I O N 

 
WHEREAS, the County's Executive Committee recommends to the County Board  
to approve the attached Intergovernmental Agreement to Provide Public Transportation in 
Tazewell and Woodford Counties; and  
 
WHEREAS, Tazewell County receives a grant through the State of Illinois to provide rural 
transportation services; and  
 
WHEREAS, Tazewell County Resource Centers is the provider of rural transportation 
services to both Tazewell County and Woodford County; and 
 
WHEREAS, it has been proposed that the state provide a single grant for both counties with 
Tazewell County designated as the primary participant.  
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the County Board approve this recommendation. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Clerk notifies the County Board Office, Finance 
Office, and EMA of this action. 
 
PASSED THIS 31st DAY OF JULY, 2024. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Tazewell County Clerk    Tazewell County Board Chairman 
 
 

250



251



252



 COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
Mr. Chairman and Members of the Tazewell County Board: 
 
Your Executive Committees have considered the following RESOLUTION and 
recommends that it be adopted by the Board: 
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
     RESOLUTION 
 
WHEREAS, the County’s Executive Committee recommends to the County Board that  
the revised Employment Agreement between Tazewell County and Michael Deluhery as 
County Administrator be approved; and 
 
WHEREAS, the agreement extends the effective date to April 15, 2028; and   
 
WHEREAS, the agreement sets the annual salary to $154,548 effective July 31, 2024 
and $165,565 effective December 1, 2024; and 
 
WHEREAS, the agreement revises the vacation accrual rollover to the current County 
policy of one-hundred twenty days per calendar year; and 
 
WHEREAS, the agreement adds reimbursing the tuition costs for Master of Public 
Administration courses; and 
 
WHEREAS, the agreement adds the County paying the health insurance premiums for 
the administrator for a period of four months if the agreement is terminated by the 
County; and 
 
WHEREAS, the agreement includes other minor changes. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the County Board approve the recommendation. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Clerk notifies the County Board Chairman, 
State’s Attorney, and the Payroll Division of this action. 
 
PASSED THIS 31st DAY OF JULY, 2024. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
________________________________  ________________________________ 
Tazewell County Clerk    Tazewell County Board Chairman 

E-24-76 

253



   

REVISED AGREEMENT 
 
 

 THIS AGREEMENT made this 31st day of July, 2024, by and  

between the COUNTY OF TAZEWELL, ILLINOIS, a body politic and corporate, 

hereinafter called the “Employer”, and Michael Deluhery hereinafter called the 

“Employee”. 

 
RECITALS 

 
 WHEREAS, the Employer has an existing employee contract with the 

Employee which had a starting effective of May 16, 2022; and 

WHEREAS, the Employer is entering into a revised employment contract with 

Employee on July 31, 2024; and, 

 WHEREAS, the effective dates of said contract are to be July 31, 2024 through 

April 15, 2028; and, 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises hereinafter exchanged,   

and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt of which is hereby 

acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 

 (1) Period of Employment.      This Agreement shall be in full force and 

effect until April 15, 2028, unless it is terminated earlier pursuant to the provisions of 

paragraph (8), (16) or (18) of this Agreement. 

 (2) Employee Duties.      During the period of employment herein 

described, Employee shall perform the duties of County Administrator as set forth by 

law, including but not limited to the laws of the State of Illinois, all rules and ordinances 

of the County Board, the County Administrator’s job description, and such other duties 

as the Tazewell County Board or County Board Chairman may lawfully assign to 

Employee.  In so doing, Employee shall comply with all such laws. 

 (3) Hours of Work.      The parties realize that the position of County 

Administrator requires the person holding such position to work many weekends, 

evenings, and other irregular hours.  It is understood and agreed that Employee shall 

work whatever hours may be necessary in order for him to fulfill the requirements of 

254



 2 

the position of County Administrator, but in any event not less than forty (40) hours per 

week. 

 (4) Employees’ Salary.      The Employee shall receive an annual salary of 

$154,548.00 for the period commencing July 31, 2024, and said salary shall be paid in 

bi-weekly installments.  A performance evaluation will be conducted by the Executive 

Committee and the County Board Chairman. Effective December 1, 2024, the 

Employee shall receive an annual salary of $164,565.  Future evaluations and pay 

increases shall become effective the first of December of each year, consistent with 

other County employees.  After December 1, 2024, the Employee will be given an 

annual increase comparable to the increase approved by the County Board for other 

non-union employees with a yearly minimum increase of two percent.  Evaluations are 

based on the period August 1 through July 31, of each year. 

 (5) Performance Evaluation.       The Executive Committee and the County 

Board Chairman shall review and evaluate the performance of the Employee at least 

once annually in advance of the adoption of the annual operating budget. Employee 

shall be given an opportunity to discuss the evaluation with the Executive Committee 

and County Board Chairman.  Said review and evaluation shall be submitted for 

County Board approval in accordance with specific criteria developed by the County 

Board.  Said criteria may be added to or deleted from as the County Board may 

determine as they see fit.  Further, the County Board shall provide the Employee with 

a summary written statement of the findings of the Executive Committee and the 

County Board Chairman. 

 (6) Vacation Pay.      A maximum of one hundred (120) hours, or fifteen (15) 

days of vacation leave may be carried forward from one calendar year. Any vacation 

leave scheduled which exceeds five (5) consecutive work days must be first approved 

by the County Board Chairman.  Upon implementation of the Employment Agreement, 

employee will accrue, effective upon employment date, per pay period at an hourly 

rate, equal to four (4) weeks vacation. All vacation leave earned prior to the effective 

date of this Agreement shall remain intact.  Any vacation leave accrued under the 

terms hereof and remaining unused, at the termination of this Agreement will be paid 

255



 3 

in cash to Employee at such time in an amount equal to the number of hours of such 

unused vacation leave multiplied by the Employee’s then current hourly rate of pay.   

 (7) Sick Leave.       Employee shall receive the same sick leave benefits 

provided under the Tazewell County Personnel Policy, and all benefits earned prior to 

the effective date of this Agreement shall remain intact.   

 (8) Disability Termination.      Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement 

to the contrary, the Employer is hereby given the option to terminate this Agreement in 

the event Employee shall, during the term hereof, become permanently disabled as 

the term permanently disabled is hereinafter fixed and defined.  Such option shall be 

exercised by the Employer giving notice to Employee by registered mail, addressed to 

him in care of the Employee at his current residence, or at such other address as 

Employee shall designate in writing.  On the giving of such notice, this Agreement 

shall cease on the last day of the month in which the notice is so mailed, with the 

same force and effect as if such last day of the month were  originally herein set forth 

as the termination date hereof. 

 For the purpose of this Agreement, Employee shall be deemed to have become 

permanently disabled, if, during any year of the term hereof, because of ill health, 

physical or mental disability, or for other causes beyond his control he shall have been 

continuously unable or unwilling or shall have failed to perform his duties for a total 

period of sixty (60) days, irrespective of whether or not such days are consecutive, 

beyond the sick leave time and vacation time accrued.  For the purpose hereof, the 

term “any year of the term hereof” is defined to mean any twelve (12) calendar months 

period commencing December 1 and terminating November 30, during the terms of 

this Agreement.  If Employee becomes permanently disabled then the Employer shall 

have no obligation to Employee for the severance payment as described in paragraph 

16. 

 (9) Automobile.       Employee shall provide his own automobile.  Employee 

is solely responsible for all costs and expenses associated with such automobile, 

including but not limited to purchase, maintenance, insurance, license, registration, 

fines and fees.  The Employer will pay a monthly car allowance of $300.00. 

256



 4 

 (10) Other Business Expense.      Upon prior approval of the County Board 

Chairman, the Employer shall reimburse Employee for other Employee business 

expenses, such as, but not limited to, the following: air travel, taxi, auto rental, lodging, 

meals, professional memberships (including ICMA, ILCMA, IACA, GFOA, IGFOA, and 

NACO) and subscriptions to the publications and registration fees for training 

programs or conferences offered by organizations, or as provided in the County 

Personnel Policy.  Such reimbursement is limited to the amount budgeted by the 

County Board in the administrator Expenses line item. 

 The Employer will provide Employee with a laptop computer and cell phone, or 

a mobile phone reimbursement per the Employer’s policy at the Employee’s discretion, 

to be used in performing his duties for Employer according to the same policies 

applicable to other County Employees.   

 (11) Group Medical Insurance Benefits.      The Employer shall offer 

employee health, hospitalization, dental, and optical coverage in accordance with the 

County Personnel Policy.  The employer will make dependent coverage available in 

accordance with the Personnel Policy. The Employer waives any waiting period for 

enrollment. 

 (12)  Tuition Reimbursement.      The Employer shall pay the full tuition costs 

for the Employee to enroll in courses in Northern Illinois University’s Master of Public 

Administration program. 

(13) Other Benefits.       There are 457(b) investment options available.   

(14) Outside Activities.       The ICMA code of conduct is to be strictly 

adhered to including political neutrality.  Employee shall not engage in any activity for 

which he receives compensation without prior approval of the County Board Chairman.  

Employee agrees that he shall not engage in any outside activity which may create an 

actual or perceived conflict of interest.  Employee also agrees to arrange the outside 

activity so as not to intrude upon Employee’s ability to devote his full-time and 

attention to Employer’s affairs.  Employee shall sign a statement of no conflict of 

interest and file a copy with the County Clerk when engaging in outside activities for 

compensation.  All work shall be conducted during evenings and weekends unless the 

257



 5 

Employee is authorized to use personal or vacation time by the County Board 

Chairman. 

 (15) Holidays.       Employee shall receive the same paid holidays as are 

afforded to other County Employees. 

 (16) Termination by the Employer.       Employer may terminate this 

Agreement at any time by a two-thirds vote of the County Board in favor of termination.  

It is understood and agreed by the parties that Employee shall be an employee “at will” 

and may be dismissed without cause.  The termination of Employee is so specified in 

the Title 1, Chapter 3 of the Tazewell County Code, Sec. 5. 

 (17) Severance Pay.      In the event the Employer terminates this Agreement 

and Employee’s employment under paragraph (16), the Employer agrees to pay 

Employee twenty weeks severance pay in a single lump sum payment.  Said Payment 

shall be calculated by dividing the Employee’s then current annual salary.  Any 

amounts required to be deducted such as Federal Income Tax, FICA, State Income 

Tax, and IMRF shall be subtracted from the lump sum payment. Employee shall also 

be compensated for unused vacation leave in accordance with paragraph (6).  

Employee agrees to accept these payments as liquidated damages in full satisfaction 

of any rights, compensation, or other benefits Employee may have under the terms of 

this Agreement or otherwise. For a period of four months following the date of 

termination, the Employer shall pay one hundred percent (100%) of the premium costs 

to continue group medical insurance benefits for the Employee and dependents as 

provided in paragraph (11).  

 In the event Employee is terminated after being formally charged in a court of 

competent jurisdiction with any criminal violation committed in his official capacity or 

evidencing dishonesty and the Employer finds that Employee more likely than not 

committed such offense then the Employer shall have no obligation to Employee for 

the severance payment described in this paragraph. 

 In the event Employee is terminated after being found guilty by a court of 

competent jurisdiction of any criminal violation committed in his official capacity or 

evidencing dishonesty, or admits to committing any unlawful act involving personal 

258



 6 

gain to him, the Employer shall have no obligation to Employee for the severance 

payment described in this paragraph. 

 In the event the Employee fails to comply with paragraph (14) of this 

Agreement, the Employer may choose to terminate this Agreement and shall have no 

obligation to Employee for the severance payment as described in this paragraph. 

 In the event the Employer decides not to renew or extend this Agreement, the 

Employer shall have no obligation to pay Employee severance pay as described in this 

section. 

 (18) Termination by Employee.      Employee may terminate this Agreement 

at any time by giving forty-five (45) days written notice to the County Board Chairman 

and acceptance by the County Board of such termination. 

(19) Eligibility for Benefits Afforded Other County Employees.
 Except for the benefit categories indicated in previous paragraphs of this 

Agreement, Employee shall receive the same employment benefits as are provided to 

other County Employees.   

(20) Renewal.      The Employer and Employee may meet to discuss the 

renewal of this Agreement at any time during its term. 

 (21) Amendments.      All amendments of this Agreement are invalid and 

ineffective unless reduced to writing and signed by all parties. 

 (22) Indemnification. Unless otherwise prohibited by applicable law,  

Employer shall defend, save harmless, and indemnify Employee against any tort, 

professional liability claim or demand or other legal action, whether groundless or 

otherwise, arising out of an alleged act or omission occurring in the performance of  

Employee's duties as County Administrator or resulting from the exercise of judgment 

or discretion in connection with the performance of official duties or responsibilities, 

unless the act or omission involved willful, wanton, or intentional conduct. Legal 

representation, provided by Employer for Employee, shall extend until a final 

determination of the legal action is made, including any appeals brought by either 

party. Employer shall indemnify employee against any and all losses, damages, 

judgments, interest, settlements, fines, court costs, and other reasonable costs and 

259



 7 

expenses of legal proceedings including attorney fees, and any other liabilities 

incurred by, imposed upon, or suffered by such Employee in connection with or 

resulting from any claim, action, suit, or proceeding, actual or threatened, arising out of 

or in connection with the performance of his duties, provided such claim or claims 

does not arise out of a claim for intentional conduct and shall not include punitive 

damages. Any settlement of any claim must be made with prior approval of Employer 

in order for indemnification, as proved in this Section, to be available. Employee 

recognizes that Employer shall have the right to compromise or settle any claim or 

suit; unless, said compromise or settlement is of a personal nature to Employee. 

Further, Employer agrees to pay all reasonable litigation expenses of Employee 

throughout the pendency of any litigation to which the Employee is a party, witness or 

advisor to the Employer. Such expense payments shall continue beyond Employee's 

service to the Employer as long as litigation is pending. Further, Employer agrees to 

pay Employee only reasonable travel expenses when Employee serves as a party or 

witness of Employer regarding pending litigation. Failure of Employee to immediately 

notify Employer of any claim, or legitimate threat, of legal consequence known to 

Employee, where the potential claim is against either Employee or Employer, may 

preclude Employee or the claimant from any future monetary payment by the 

Employer due to the claim and Employee may not bind Employer for settlement of any 

such claims where notice to Employer was concealed. The parties acknowledge that 

this indemnification provision does not extend to any contract dispute between 

Employer and Employee. 

(23) This Agreement.      This Agreement shall be binding upon each of the 

parties and their respective successors, assigns, and heirs as the case may be.  

Employee shall not assign any of the personal services to be rendered by the 

employee under this Agreement.  Any such assignment shall constitute employee’s 

written notice of resignation. 
 

 

 

260



 8 

Adopted this 31st day of July, 2024. 
 

ATTEST: 
 

                    

Tazewell County Clerk    Tazewell County Board Chairman 

 

 

ACCEPTED BY: 

 

____________________________ 

Employee 

261



E-24-72 
 

APPOINTMENT 
 

I, David Zimmerman, Chairman of the Tazewell County (Illinois) Board, hereby appoint 
Meghan Brake, 205 N. Runkle Street, Hanna City, Illinois 61536 to the Human Services 
Transportation Planning Commission for a term commencing August 1, 2024 and 
expiring November 30, 2025. 
 
 

COMMITTEE REPORT 
  

TO:  Tazewell County Board 
FROM:  Executive Committee 
 
This Committee has reviewed the appointment of Meghan Brake to the Human Services 
Transportation Planning Commission and we recommend said appointment be 
approved. 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION OF APPROVAL 
 

The Tazewell County Board hereby approves the appointment of Meghan Brake to the 
Human Services Transportation Planning Commission. 
 
The County Clerk shall notify the County Board Office and the County Board Office will 
notify TCRPC, 456 Fulton, Suite 401, Peoria, IL 61602. 
 
PASSED THIS 31st DAY OF JULY, 2024  
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
             
Tazewell County Clerk    Tazewell County Board Chairman 

262



E-24-86 
 

REAPPOINTMENT 
 

I, David Zimmerman, Chairman of the Tazewell County (Illinois) Board, hereby appoint 
Richard Jameson, 417 S. Locust Street, Tremont, IL 61568 to the Tremont Fire Protection 
District for a term commencing August 01, 2024 and expiring April 30, 2027. 
 
 

COMMITTEE REPORT 
  

TO:  Tazewell County Board 
FROM: Executive Committee 
 
This Committee has reviewed the appointment of Richard Jameson to the Tremont Fire 
Protection District and we recommend said appointment be approved. 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION OF APPROVAL 
 

The Tazewell County Board hereby approves the appointment of Richard Jameson to the 
Tremont Fire Protection District. 
 
The County Clerk shall notify the County Board Office and the County Board Office will 
notify McGrath Law Office, P.C., 113 S. Main, PO Box 139, Mackinaw, IL 61755 of this 
action. 
 
PASSED THIS 31st DAY OF JULY, 2024.  
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
              
Tazewell County Clerk     Tazewell County Board Chairman 

263


	I. Roll Call
	II.  Approve minutes of the June 19, 2024 meeting and June 26, 2024 in-place
	meeting
	III.   Public Comment
	IV.   New Business
	E-24-59  A. Recommend to approve Election Judge List
	E-24-75  B. Recommend to approve appointment to County Board for District 2
	E-24-85  C. Recommend to approve National Opioid Settlement Agreement with Kroger
	E-24-87  D. Recommend to approve 3rd quarter 2024 payment to Greater Peoria
	Economic Development Council
	E-24-88  E. Recommend to approve Resolution Authorizing Conveyance of Municipally
	Owned Right of Way
	E-24-89  F. Recommend to approve proposed change to FY23 Energy Transition Grant
	Fund projects
	E-24-90  G. Recommend to approve Intergovernmental Agreement to Provide Public
	Transportation in Tazewell and Woodford Counties
	E-24-76  I. Recommend to approve Employment Agreement with Administrator Michael
	Deluhery
	V.  Appointments and Reappointments
	E-24-72  A. Recommend to approve appointment of Meghan Brake to the Human
	Services Transportation Planning Commission.
	E-24-86  B. Recommend to approve appointment of Richard Jameson to the Tremont
	Fire Protection District
	A.    Discussion: Buildings Update
	VII.   Reports / Communications
	VIII.   Recess
	E-24-85 Opioid Settlement Agreement - Kroger.pdf
	Action_Required_Kroger_National_Opioid_Settl.pdf
	Subdivision Participation and Release Form


	07-24-24-Executive-Agenda.pdf
	I. Roll Call
	II.  Approve minutes of the June 19, 2024 meeting and June 26, 2024 in-place
	meeting
	III.   Public Comment
	IV.   New Business
	E-24-59  A. Recommend to approve Election Judge List
	E-24-75  B. Recommend to approve appointment to County Board for District 2
	E-24-85  C. Recommend to approve National Opioid Settlement Agreement with Kroger
	E-24-87  D. Recommend to approve 3rd quarter 2024 payment to Greater Peoria
	Economic Development Council
	E-24-88  E. Recommend to approve Resolution Authorizing Conveyance of County
	Owned Right of Way
	E-24-89  F. Recommend to approve proposed change to FY23 Energy Transition Grant
	Fund projects
	E-24-90  G. Recommend to approve Intergovernmental Agreement to Provide Public
	Transportation in Tazewell and Woodford Counties
	E-24-76  I. Recommend to approve Employment Agreement with Administrator Michael
	Deluhery
	V.  Appointments and Reappointments
	E-24-72  A. Recommend to approve appointment of Meghan Brake to the Human
	Services Transportation Planning Commission.
	E-24-86  B. Recommend to approve appointment of Richard Jameson to the Tremont
	Fire Protection District
	A.    Discussion: Buildings Update
	VII.   Reports / Communications
	VIII.   Recess




